











Executive Director's Message

Plagiarism is not only an unethical practice but also a serious academic offence in educational institutions. It is of utmost importance that students educate themselves about plagiarism and its repercussions. Although the internet has made plagiarizing very convenient, the technology in this day and age has also made it easy to detect plagiarism. To ensure that no one gets away with duplicating content, the IBA uses various anti-plagiarism software to identify any plagiarism in assignments/thesis submitted by students or reports/research papers of faculty members.

We have zero tolerance towards plagiarism and anyone found violating the rules outlined in this booklet will have to face serious consequences. This booklet covers all the details regarding our plagiarism policy and we expect our students and faculty members to strictly abide by it. The IBA takes pride in being one of the top universities in Pakistan and we will continue to impart quality education to our students for many years to come.

Dr. S Akbar Zaidi

This document is an adoption of Higher Education
Commission's document 'The HEC Plagiarism Policy'. It refers
to other documents duly listed in the References, including
'The little book of plagiarism' developed by Leeds Metropolitan
University, Leeds, UK. IBA acknowledges all these efforts made
by individuals at these esteemed institutions.

CONTENTS

Part 1-Plagiarism

1.	what is Plagiarism?	06
2.	Why shouldn't I Plagiarise?	07
3.	Positive Reasons for Not Plagiarising	80
	3.1 Pride in Your Work	80
	3.2 Real level of attainment	80
4.	Plagiarism in practice-what is it?	80
	4.1 Copying from a single source	80
	4.2 Copying from several source	09
	4.3 Paraphrasing	10
	4.4 Collusion	
5.	Reuse of programming code	11
6.	Use of Multimedia	11
7.	Plagiarism-how do I avoid it?	11
	7.1 Use of Quotations	11
	7.2 Making Notes	12
	7.3 Paraphrasing	12
	7.4 Cite sources	12
8.	How do I know when to include a reference in my work?	13
9.	Your lecturer's views	
	The textbook	
11.	Copying from the web or purchasing essays	14
12.	Conclusions	14
	12.1 Plagiarism-identification	14
	12.2 Electronic detection	
	12.3 Penalties	14
	12.4 The best approach	15

Part 2 IBA's-Plagiarism Policy

13. Preamble	17
14. Aim	17
15. Applicability	17
16. Responsibility of IBA	17
17. Reporting	18
18. Investigation	18
19. Operation Procedure for Plagiarism Standing Committee	19
20. The Report of Plagiarism Standing Committee	20
21. Penalties for Plagiarism	20
22. Additional Actions Required	22
23. Appeal	23
24. Penalty for Wrong Reporting/False Allegation	23
Glossary	23
References	23

Part 1 Plagiarism

1. What is Plagiarism?

According to the concise oxford dictionary, Plagiarism is defined as "taking and using the thoughts, writing, and inventions of another person as one's own. This, or various similar definitions found in recognized publications/documents, are very broad and can be used to create awareness about plagiarism but are not practical enough to apply in order to ascertain guilt or innocence in specific cases. In order to establish the violation of ethical norm, or academic or intellectual dishonesty resulting from plagiarism and to take punitive actions in this regard, it is necessary that the variety of forms in which plagiarism manifests itself are known.

These include but are not limited to the following:

- Verbatim copying, near-verbatim copying, or purposely paraphrasing portions of another's published or unpublished document without citing the exact reference.
- Copying elements of another author's document, such as equations or illustrations that are not common knowledge, or copying or purposely paraphrasing sentences without citing the source.
- Verbatim copying portions of another author's document by citing but not clearly differentiating what text has been copied (e.g. not applying quotation marks correctly) and/or not citing the source correctly.
- The unacknowledged use of computer programs, mathematical/computer models/algorithms, computer software in all forms, macros, spreadsheets, web pages, database, mathematical derivation and calculations, designs/models/displays of any sort, diagrams graphs, tables, drawings, works of art of any sort, fine art pieces or artefacts, digital images, computeraided design drawing, GIS files, photographs, maps, music/composition of any sort and posters presentations.
- Self- plagiarism, that is, the verbatim or near-verbatim re-use of significant portions of one's own copyrighted work without citing the original source.

The Free Encyclopedia Wikipedia, on the web describes and explains Plagiarism as the unauthorized use or close imitation of the language and thoughts of another and the representation of them as one's own original work. Unlike cases of **forgery**, in which the authenticity of the writing, document, or some other kind of object itself is in question, plagiarism is concerned with the issue of false attribution. Within **academia** plagiarism by students, professors, or researchers is considered **academic dishonesty** or **academic fraud** and offenders are subject to academic censure. In **journalism**, plagiarism is considered a breach of journalistic ethics, and reporters caught plagiarizing typically face disciplinary measures ranging from suspension to termination. While plagiarism in scholarship and journalism

has a centuries-old history, the development of the internet, where articles appear as electronic text, has made the physical act of copying the work of others much easier. Plagiarism is different from **copyright infringement.** While both terms may apply to a particular act, they emphasize different aspects of the transgression. Copyright infringement is a violation of the rights of the copyright holder, which involves the loss of income and artistic control of the material when it is used without the copyright holder's consent. On the other hand, plagiarism is concerned with the unearned increment to the plagiarizing author's reputation. In the academic world, plagiarism by students is a very serious academic offense which can result in punishments such as a failing grade for the course (typically at the high school level), or a failing grade for the course (typically at the college or university level). For cases of repeated plagiarism, or for cases where a student has committed a severe type of plagiarism (e.g. copying an entire article and submitting it as his/her own work), a student may be suspended or expelled, and any academic degrees or awards may be revoked. For professors and researchers, who are required to act as role models for their students. Plagiarism is a very serious offence, and is punishable by sanctions ranging from suspension to termination, along with the loss of credibility and integrity. Charges of plagiarism against students, faculty members and staff are typically heard by internal disciplinary committees, which students and faculty members have agreed to be bound by.

Wikipedia also describes self-plagiarism as "the re-use of significant, identical, or nearly identical portions of one's own work without acknowledging that one is doing so or without citing the original work. Typically, high public-interest texts are not a subject of self-plagiarism however; the authors should not violate copyright where applicable. "public-interest texts" include such material as social, professional, and cultural opinions usually published in newspapers and magazines.

2. Why Shouldn't I Plagiarise?

There are many reasons why students Plagiarise, for example:

- · not being fully aware of what Plagiarism is
- short-term panic responses when an assignment is due and time is short
- feeling a desperate need not to be seen as a failure and so copying to try to ensure "success"
- different academic traditions

Sometimes, of course, plagiarism is a determined and deliberate attempt to gain the credits for the course without doing the work.

Whatever the reason, though, plagiarism is never the less cheating. It is not only cheating the University but, probably more importantly for your fellow students, it is cheating them. But there are more reasons than the negative ones (cheating others, unfairness, and possibly discovery and disciplinary action) for not plagiarizing. Essentially, plagiarism is also cheating you and letting yourself down.

3. Positive Reasons For Not Plagiarising

3.1 Pride in Your Work

Students should be able to take pride in their work and in the achievements they have attained. There is considerable satisfaction in knowing that the work you have submitted is your own, and the marks obtained reflect your own effort. There can be little real satisfaction in knowing that your mark (however good) was because you were a good cheat, rather than a good student.

3.2 Real Level of Attainment

It is possible that someone might plagiarise widely and not be discovered throughout their University career. But they will not really have learned anything. The discovery that their apparent attainment does not match their real abilities will then become apparent when they find a job. In the end this could lead to dismissal and the termination of a career.

4. Plagiarism in Practice- what is it?

Plagiarism takes many forms. Some of the more common are identified here.

4.1 Copying from a single source

This is where the student uses one of the following as the basis for the whole or substantial part of the assignment.

- a published book
- a published article
- the internet
- an essay from an essay bank
- a piece of work previously submitted by another student for the same or a similar assignment.
- copying from a text which is about to be submitted for the same assignment (see also collusion below)

Note that this list is comprised of both published and unpublished sources. The first three are published, the second three are not. Plagiarism therefore is not copying from published sources only. It can also arise from the copying of unpublished sources like essays.

Where substantial copying takes place the words, arrangement of material and ideas are those of the source, not of the student, and the work rarely answers the question set. Where plagiarism is of this nature and extent of it is very difficult to see how it could have been accidental, (especially if the text were derived from an essay bank's previous submission) and therefore it is viewed very seriously indeed. This kind of plagiarism is also increasingly detectable with modern software.

Unacceptable Excuses

- **A.** The book/article was cited in the bibliography. No a bibliography is a list of sources *consulted* "The book/article was cited in the bibliography. No a bibliography is a list of sources *consulted* it doses not specifically refer to the section referred.
- **B.** "The book was written by the lecturer and he/she would expect to find their work repeated in the assignment." No lectures would expect several sources to be read and used, and would not be flattered to find their own work simply copied out.

4.2 Copying from several sources

This is similar to the above, except that more than one source is used. A student obtains (say) 4 sources of information, and copies a sentence or group of sentences from A, then one from B, one from C and one from D and so on.

This is example of plagiarism where a student might genuinely have thought that they were not doing anything wrong. The sources used might well have been cited in the bibliography, the essay might answer the question set, the organisation of the material may well be the student's own. However, this is still plagiarism.

Why the reason is that although the structure and composition is the student's own work, the words are not. Rules of academic presentation require that whenever a direct quote from a source is used, this should be cited.

In this type of plagiarism no quotations are given in the text and thus the work is being dishonest about who actually wrote what. Further, the student's only contribution is cutting and pasting, which is not what the assignment was designed to assess, and there is no demonstration by the student concerned of the required skills of analysis, interpretation, judgment or opinion.

4.3 Paraphrasing

This is putting someone else's view into your own words, and this is one of the grey areas in plagiarism. To a certain extent any essay or assignment which relies on reading a series of texts as the basis of assignments will contain a significant amount of paraphrasing. There are three key things to remember in this case to ensure that it cannot be thought to be plagiarism:

- Do not use only one source.
- Acknowledge all sources used.
- · Take care when taking notes.

Unacceptable Excuses

- A. I used my own words. You may have-but if all you have done is summarized someone else's ideas then you have still copied because you have made it appears as if the ideas, arrangement of material etc. were your own.
- **B.** I cited all the sources in the bibliography. Again, you may have, but the issue is how you have used the works cited, and simply to summarise the work of others whether or not the works are in the bibliography is still trying to pass someone else's work off as your own.

4.4 Collusion

This can occur when students work together, and it is very important to distinguish when this is required, and when it has to end.

Some assignments require students to work together as part of a group project. Where the group as a whole gets the mark then it is joint work throughout and the group-co-operation is part of what is being assessed.

Some group projects, though, require students to work together at the planning stage, but then to submit individual assignments. Here the co-operation has to end at the point where you begin to compile your own individual submission, which must be your own work from this stage onwards.

A grey area is when students discuss their work together. A line needs to be drawn between legitimate discussions of the current assignment with student colleagues, especially where you share a house, and collusion. Where students share a house they often also share the same resources – for example a common pool of books borrowed from the library.

The important thing to remember is that (except on group projects where the group as a whole gets the mark) whilst general discussion of the issues involved, or approaches to be taken, is acceptable, the final submission must be your own individual effort. Discussion before the assignment is undertaken is one thing, discussion, correction and improvement during it is quite another and might lead to the suspicion of copying.

Also, remember that if you allow a fellow student to copy your work you will be considered as guilty of collusion as the actual copyist, and will be subject to the same penalties under the IBA's Regulations.

5. Reuse of programming code

In industry reuse of code is to be encouraged and both Web sites and books will provide numerous examples of code BUT you should realise that part of the purpose of a programming coursework is for you to develop your own skills. If most of your code comes from other sources then you will not be awarded a very high mark and also you will have learnt very little.

If however you choose to make use of other people's code then in order to avoid an accusation of plagiarism, you must identify the page in the book that you have referred to otherwise it is plagiarism offence and will be dealt with as such.

Note that you will be awarded more marks for the code you write yourself, than the code you use from others. Obviously if you copy the entire program from someone else(and reference the work) you will be awarded zero as you have not made a contribution to your coursework solution.

6. Use of Multimedia

It is your responsibility to credit all such material appropriately. You should be aware that copyright material must not be published (for example on a website) unless you have permission from the owner of the copyright.

7. Plagiarism – how do I avoid it

The following good practice guidelines will help you to avoid plagiarism.

7.1 Use of Quotations

Remember that if you use the exact words in your source these should appear in quotation marks and be referenced by the book or article and the page on which the quote appears. Never use direct quotation from any source unless quotation marks are used and full references are given.

Try to use quotations sparingly. Use them only when the author has expressed something so well and so succinctly that you feel that the words cannot be bettered.

If you do this you will probably reduce the number of your quotations and be aware of when you are quoting.

7.2 Making Notes

During note taking it is possible subconsciously to use the language of your sources. Try to be aware of this when you are making notes. To avoid it, try not to make notes as you read, but read first, consider what the author has said, and then make notes. If you do this you will copy less of the text.

7.3 Paraphrasing

Remember here to attribute the broad ideas or content to the author in question. You will probably carry over some of their language, but as long as you are making it clear which sources you are using, and not attempting to pass it off as your own work then this should not arouse suspicion of plagiarism.

The more sources you look at, the less likely it is that you will seem to be repeating without acknowledgement the content of one of them. And if you take care when you are taking notes (see above) you will also reduce the chance of unacknowledged paraphrasing.

7.4 Cite sources

You should cite all the sources you have used. Always cite any web sources used. If they have contributed to the completion of your assignment they are required to be listed just as much as printed books or articles.

If you only cite some, and the lecturer recognizes an extract from another source which has not been included in the bibliography, then you can expect that he or she will look very closely at the assignment in question.

Absence of source citation can very easily be seen as an attempt to prevent the lecturer possibly comparing your assignment text with that of the actual text used to check for the degree of similarity. If there is considerable similarity (either direct copying or paraphrasing) and you have not cited the work in question, then you might have some difficulty in convincing your lecturer that this was not done to try to conceal the plagiarism which has been identified.

Also, it is not good practice to pad out a bibliography with lots of titles which you have not read. Try to keep to those which you have actually consulted.

A short list of well-used sources is much better than a long list of sources which you have never looked at.

8. How do I know when to include a reference in my work?

When you are writing an essay or completing a similar kind of assignment it is not always necessary to include a reference to everything you say. If that were so, your work would be more references than substance. When you give a reference is partly a matter of judgment, and conventions will vary from one discipline to another.

This example from an English history assignment gives a good indication of when you would and would not give a source reference. The sentence "The Battle of Hastings was fought in the south of England in1066" would not need references to where you obtained the information, because it is very well known and is not contentious.

However, if you then wish to discuss the various opinions of historians on the conduct and outcome of that battle, then you should reference the source e.g. 'Spring considers that the Norman tactics were misguided but ultimately successful (Spring, 1998) while Summer has long argued that it was only the exhaustion of the Anglo-Saxon forces which permitted the Norman Victory (Summer, 1992). 'You might then continue; 'A more modern view has recently been expressed by Winter (2002) which regards both these views as too simplistic and I want to consider her ideas in more detail here.' Note here, the way that you have moved from simply stating what scholars might think about this battle, to how you are going to consider and deal with their views. In this part of the essay it will then be clear to what extent you have relied on the information and views in this particular source, and which views are your own.

9. Your Lecturer's Views

It is a common assumption that your lecturer wants you to repeat his or her views in your assignment, especially if these have been published in a book or article. Try to remember that this is not the case. All lecturers want you to use the sources suggested in the reading list (including their own if relevant), but they want you to use them constructively to answer the question, or complete the assignment. They do not want you simply to repeat the views contained in their own works.

10. The Textbook

If a lecturer recommends a textbook, then obviously he or she wants you to read it. But, as above, they do not want you to copy it out when completing an assignment. Once again, the idea is to use the information constructively. You want to show that you have understood the issues and concepts involved, but in order to show that you have understood them, there has to be clear input from you. This cannot be there if you simply copy out the text of the textbook, however good this is. If it helps you to avoid doing this- remember that your lecturer will have read the textbook and will therefore be very likely to spot direct copying.

To avoid suspicion of collusion you are advised to do the following:

- Have any discussions and sharing of ideas before you start completing the assignment
- Do not ask to look at anyone else's assignment and do not show yours to anyone else if they ask to see it.
- Remember that if sequence, style and content are very similar between two pieces of work it will lead the lecturer to wonder whether there has been collusion.
- Remember that there are now electronic devices available to test for linguistic similarity between two pieces of work.

11. Copying from the web or purchasing essays

There is only one simple piece of advice here – **do not do this.** You may know some fellow student who has done so and "got away with it". However, remember, that such a student may not have similar "success" next time, and that even if he or she has been successful in passing off work which is not their own, it does not mean that you will be. Students who have been found to have downloaded or purchased work will not only automatically fail that module or modules, but will also seriously risk their career in the University being terminated by being required to withdraw from their course.

12. Conclusions

12.1 Plagiarism - identification

In this booklet we have tried to identify how students may plagiarise without being fully aware that they are doing so. In doing so we have also given you some indications of how lectures might recognise that work is not your own.

12.2 Electronic Detection

There are now various and increasingly sophisticated electronic aids to assist lecturers who may be in doubt about the originality of work submitted. These include programmes which look at linguistic similarities and others which can identify when essays have been bought from websites.

Essentially however clever web-packages or essay purchase schemes may be, there will be software which is able to detect it – and in such a case it is hard to imagine any acceptable explanation.

12.3 Penalties

Regrettably, however, plagiarism and cheating does occur. The University does have penalties for students who plagiarise and it will use them.

The relevant regulations and procedures will be used to investigate the suspicion of plagiarism and if plagiarism is held to have taken place, various penalties can be imposed, up to requiring a student to withdraw from the University.

12.4 The Best Approach

The best approach is to ensure that you have not plagiarized in the first place. The advice contained in this booklet will help you to do this.

If you feel in doubt, look again at the declaration at the start of the booklet. If you think you have not quite met the requirements of this kind of declaration – look at you work again before you submit it, and make sure that it is wholly your own work. If you still feel in doubt - ask your tutor before you submit the assignment.

If you follow this advice you should be able to avoid any risk of the work being thought of as plagiarized and you will be able to take pride in achievements which have been produced by your effort alone.

Part 2 IBA's Plagiarism Policy

13. Preamble

In the wake of fundamental improvements being introduced in the system of higher education in Pakistan, the credit, respect, recognition of research and scholarly publications, career development and financial gains are now linked with such original works accomplished without replicating the efforts of other researchers. It has therefore become necessary that the menace of plagiarism is highlighted and curbed through exemplary punitive actions. On the other hand we must also guard against bogus or false complaints in order to prevent victimization which may take researchers and scholars shy away from research simply because of the fear of prosecution. A plagiarism policy has therefore become necessary to create awareness, define various forms in which plagiarism exhibits itself, present a methodology of investigation, cater for punitive action proportional to the extent of the offence and even address the issue of false or spurious complaints.

14. Aim

The aim of this policy is to apprise students, teachers, researchers and staff about plagiarism and how it can be avoided. It is also aimed at discouraging plagiarism by regulating and authorizing punitive actions against those found guilty of the act of plagiarism.

15. Applicability

The policy is applicable to students, teachers, researchers and staff of IBA who are involved in writing or publishing their work. In this context a "student" is a person who, on the date of submission of his/her paper/work is a registered student of IBA "Teachers and Researchers" include faculty members or equivalent of the IBA and such other persons as may be declared to be so by regulations. "Staff" is any employee of IBA involved in writing and publishing his/her work.

Any person listing his CV on the website or any current publication or applying for any benefit on the basis of published or presented work that is plagiarized will be liable to be punished as per prescribed rules.

16. Responsibility of IBA

IBA is responsible to appraise its students, teachers, researchers and staff of the definition, implications and resulting punishments in case, after due investigation, they are found guilty of plagiarism.

The IBA must acquaint their students, teachers, researchers and staff with this policy and ensure that they are fully aware that all authors are deemed to be individually and collectively responsible for the contents of papers published by

journal/publishers etc. Hence, it is the responsibility of each author, including the coauthors, to ensure that papers submitted for publication should attain the highest ethical standards with respects to plagiarism. Any university or degree awarding institution which does not adopt and implement this policy will have its degree derecognized by HEC.

17. Reporting

To inform HEC or respective university/organizations of alleged plagiarism, a complaint is to be made by email, post, fax or other means to IBA's Acadamic Committee. In case lodging a complaint in the form of a letter, copy may be sent to HEC's Quality Assurance Division.

The following information is to be provided:

- a) Citation of the original paper or document or idea which was plagiarized, (paper title, author (s), publication title ,month and year of publication if available and the journal, in which published, with details). If the original paper is unpublished (e.g. an institutional technical report, an online paper), the complainant is to provide as much information as possible to ensure authenticity of the claim.
- b) The citation of the alleged plagiarizing paper (paper title, author (s), publication title, month and year of publication if available and the journal with details in which published). If the paper is unpublished (e.g. an institutional technical report, an online paper), the complainant is to provide as much information as possible to ensure proper investigation.
- c) Copies of both papers if possible.
- d) Any other information that would help IBA to efficiently resolve the claim.
- e) Name, designation, organization, address, e-mail address and telephone number of the complainant.

18. Investigation

Upon receipt of an allegation of plagiarism, the IBA's Acadamic Committee will request the Director (IBA) to carry out investigation. The complaints received through HEC or directly by a university/organization will be dealt with by the IBA according to the procedures given below. The Director (IBA) will have the discretion of not taking any action on anonymous complaints.

For investigation of plagiarism cases, the Director (IBA) will have an obligation to:

 a) Constitute a "Plagiarism Standing Committee" consisting of three senior faculty members, a subject specialist in that particular field is to be co-opted, and if possible a nominee of the HEC. The seniority of the member of "plagiarism standing committee" should be of a level keeping in view the seniority of the individual being investigated upon and the nature and gravity of the offence.

- b) Provide a guideline, prepared by HEC for the functioning of the "Plagiarism Standing Committee", to all member of the committee.
- c) Provide clear terms of reference to the "Plagiarism Standing Committee" for their investigation.
- d) The members of the "Plagiarism Standing Committee" are to sign a confidentiality statement that during the investigation they will under no circumstances, disclose and individual author's name paper tittles, referees, or any other personal or specific information concerning the plagiarism complaint under investigation, nor shall they reveal the names of the committee members.
- e) Provide opportunity to author/authors under investigation to justify the originality of their concepts and research work. Similar opportunity will also be provided to the author whose paper is deemed to have been plagiarized and/or the complainant, to justify the complaint.
- f) Provide every opportunity to the "Plagiarism Standing Committee" to use all foreseeable means to investigation the plagiarism claim.

19. Operation Procedure for Plagiarism Standing Committe

The Plagiarism Standing Committee shall conduct the investigation depending on the detail of the claim, the investigation may include, but may not be limited to, any or all of the following steps:

- a) Manual and/or automated tests for content similarity.
- b) Determination of the extent and quantum of significant material plagiarized.
- c) Soliciting comments to the claim, from the editor-in-chief (of a journal) or programme chair (of conference proceedings) and referees of either or both papers.
- d) Soliciting Comments from the teacher in case of a student or group of students
- e) Consultation with legal counsel.
- f) Consult/contact witnesses and record statements there-of if so required.
- g) Consult/contact present and/or past employers/university/college of the authors.

20. The Report of Plagiarism Standing Committee

The Plagiarism Standing Committee will submit its report with clear cut findings and recommendations to the Director (IBA) within a specified period not exceeding sixty days. The Director (IBA) will have the discretion to implement the recommendations after approval through the statutory process and take punitive action against the offender as per penalties prescribed under this policy or to forward the report to HEC or his/her parent organization for further action if outside their purview/jurisdiction.

21. Penalties for Plagiarism

Plagiarism is an intellectual crime. As such the penalties for plagiarism should not only take into account the severity and recurrence of the offence. But the also the intellectual standing of the offender. This entails a gradual increase in punitive action with minimum punishment for a first time offence by a student who copies a home work assignment to a maximum punishment for a teacher/researcher/staff who attempts to present/publish, or actually presents/publishes plagiarized material; as his own, in a conference/journal. Therefore, the punishments for plagiarism have been divided into two separate categories, i.e. those for "teachers, researchers and staff" and those for the "students".

a) Penalties for Teachers, Researchers and Staff: When an act of plagiarism, as described earlier in paras 2 and 3, is found to have occurred, the "Plagiarism Standing Committee" in its recommendations, DEPENDING UPON THE SERIOUSNESS OF THE PROVEN OFFENCE, will advise the competent authority of the organization, to take a) any one or a combination of the following disciplinary action (s) against the teacher, researcher and/or staff found guilty of offence:

i) Major Penalty

In cases where most of the paper (or key results) have been exactly copied from any published work of other people without giving the reference to the original work, then(a) a major penalty of dismissal from service needs to be prescribed, along with(b) the offender may be "Black Listed" and may NOT be eligible for employment in any academic/research organization, and (c) the notification of "black listing" of the author(s) may be published in the print media or may be publicized on different websites at the discretion of Director (IBA).

ii) Moderate Penalty

In case where some paragraphs including some key results have been copied without citation, then a moderate penalty involving any one or

both of the following needs to be imposed (a) demotion to the next lower grade, (b) the notification of "black listing" of the author(s) which may be published in the print media or may be publicized on different websites at the discretion of the Director (IBA).

iii) Minor Penalty

In case a few paragraphs have been copied from an external source without giving reference of that work, then minor penalties need to be prescribed for a specified period involving any one or more of the following: (a) warning, (b) freezing of all research grants, (c) the promotions/annual increments of the offender may be stopped, for a specified period and (d) HEC or the university/organization may debar the offender from sponsorship of research funding, travel grant, supervision of PhD students, scholarship, fellowship or any other funded program for a period as deemed appropriate by the "Plagiarism Standing Committee".

- b) Students: when an act of plagiarism, as described earlier in section 1 is found to have occurred, the "plagiarism standing committee" in its recommendations, DEPENDING UPON THE SERIOUSNESS OF THE PROVEN OFFENCE, will advice the Director (IBA), to take any one or a combination of the following disciplinary action(s) against the student(s) found guilty of the offence:
 - i) The offender may be expelled/rusticated from the IBA and from joining any institution of Higher Education in Pakistan for a period as deemed appropriate by the "Plagiarism Standing Committee". A notice may be circulated among all academic institutions and research organization to this effect.
 - ii) The offender may be relegated to a lower class.
 - iii) The offender may be given a failure grade in the subject.
 - iv) The offender may be fined an amount as deemed appropriate. The amount should not be less than Rs. 5,000/- and should not be more than Rs. 25,000/-.
 - The offender may be given a written warning if the offence is minor and is committed for the first time.
 - vi) The degree of a student may be withdrawn if AT ANY TIME it is proven that he or she has presented plagiarized work in his/her BBA, MBA,BS,

- MS, MPhil or PhD academic work if the extent of plagiarism comes under the category of major penalty as conveyed in section 2. (a-i)
- vii) The notification of the plagiarism by the author(s) may be published in the print media or may be publicized on different websites at the discretion of the Director (IBA).
- viii) HEC or the University/Organization may debar the offender from sponsorship of research funding, travel grant, scholarship, fellowship, or any other funded program for a period as deemed appropriate by the "plagiarism standing Committee".
- ix) Any other penalty deemed fit by the "Plagiarism Standing Committee".
- x) In the case of thesis/report/assignment the responsibility of plagiarism will be of the student and not of the supervisor/teacher or members of the Supervisory Committee.

c) Co-Authors/Declarations

- i) Provided that a co-author has listed a paper in his/her resume and applied for benefit forthwith, any co-author is deemed to be equally responsible for any plagiarism committed in a published paper presented to or published in a journal or presented at a conference.
- All journals in Pakistan must require ALL authors to sign a declaration that the material presented in the creative work is not plagiarized.

22. Additional Actions Required

In addition to the above punishment, the following additional common actions must be taken if the offence of Plagiarism is established:

- a) If the plagiarized paper/document is accessible on the web page its access will be removed. The paper itself will be kept in the database for future research or legal purposes.
- b) The author(s) will be asked to write a formal letter of apology to the authors of the original paper that was plagiarized, including an admission of plagiarism. Should the author(s) refuse to comply then additional punishment as deemed fit may be recommended by the "plagiarism standing committee".
- c) If the paper is submitted but not published yet, the paper will be rejected by the editor-in-chief or the program chair without further revision and without any further plagiarism investigation conducted. However, warning may be issued to the author/co-author.

23. Appeal

As the penalties are severe, the affected person(s) will have the right to appeal to the Director (IBA) for a review of the findings or may submit a mercy petition within 30 days from the date of notification. Such appeals/petitions will be disposed off within 60 days of receipt, by following the laid down procedures regarding such appeals.

24. Penalty for Wrong Reporting / False Allegation

If the case of plagiarism is not proved and it is confirmed that a false allegation was lodged, the Director (IBA) and will recommend disciplinary action against the complainant, to be taken by his/her parent organization. If the complainant's belongs to the IBA, the Director (IBA) shall take the disciplinary action as apporpriate.

Glossary

Citing Formally recognizing in your text the source or sources from which you obtained the information. An example has already been given in this booklet "Spring considers that the Norman tactics were misguided but ultimately successful (Spring, 1998) while Summer has long argued that it was only the exhaustion of the Anglo-Saxon force which permitted the Norman victory (Summer, 1992)."

Citation This is the act of quoting. It means the passage or words which you have directly taken from a source and reproduced in your text. The source of the quote should always be given with it.

Bibliography This is literally a list of books, but it now means a list of all the sources which you have used in completing the assignment, including electronic sources. Quote, Unquote gives examples of how you would list all major sources.

Reference This is the detailed description of the item from which you have obtained a specific piece of information. So, in the fictitious example above, you would place in your bibliography the details of the work as Spring, A.B (1998) The Norman Conquest: new approaches. Clarendon Press, Oxford.

References

- [1] "ACM (Association of Computing Machinery) Policy on Plagiarism" (http://www.acm.org/pubs/plagiarism%20policy.html)
- [2] "Academic integrity Statement: Appendix 1"(University of Southampton Calendar 2006/7) (http://www.calendar.sonton.ac.uk/sectionIV/part8a.html)
- [3] "Plagiarism from Wikipedia, the free encyclopaedia" (http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/plagiarism)
- [4] The Little book of Plagiarism, Leeds Metropolitan University, Leeds, UK.





Main Campus

- University Enclave, University Road, Karachi 75270 Pakistan
- UAN: 111-422-422
- Fax:92-21-99261508

City Campus

- Plot # 68 and 88 Garden / Kiyani Shaheed Road, Karachi 74400 Pakistan
- UAN: 111-422-422
- Fax: 92-21-38103008









